
Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, June 23, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

Due to the spread of COVID-19 and in accordance with the Governor’s Executive 
Order N-29-20 (a copy of which is attached to this agenda), the Yucaipa Valley 

Water District will be conducting this meeting by teleconference only.  Public 
comments on matters listed on the agenda or on any matter within the District’s 

jurisdiction will be received during Public Comments, Agenda Item No. III. 
 

This meeting is available by calling  
(888) 475-4499 using passcode 676-950-731#  

 

View live presentation material at 
https://zoom.us/j/676950731 (Click here) 

 

There will be no public physical location for attending this meeting in 
person.  The District’s Board meeting room will be  

closed to the public until further notice. 
 

If you are unable to participate by telephone, you may submit comments and/or 
questions in writing for the Board’s consideration by sending them to 

inquiry@yvwd.us.  Submit your written inquiry prior to the start of the meeting.  All 
public comments received prior to the start of the meeting will be provided to the 

Board and may be read into the record or compiled as part of the record. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may briefly address the Board of Directors on 

matters within its jurisdiction or on any matter listed on this agenda.   

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 1 of 54

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/
https://zoom.us/j/676950731
https://zoom.us/j/676950731
mailto:inquiry@yvwd.us


 
Page 2 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these items unless board members, administrative staff, or members of the 
public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed prior to the vote for approval.   

A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Board Meeting - June 16, 2020 

V. STAFF REPORT 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Status Report Regarding the Discontinuation of Utility Service Pursuant to Executive Order 
N-42.20 [Director Memorandum No. 20-105 - Page 16 of 54] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Staff Presentation - No Action Required. 

B. Consideration of a Resolution Waiving Late Fees During Specific Stages of the COVID-19 
Resilience Roadmap for California [Director Memorandum No. 20-106 - Page 19 of 54] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-32. 

C. Consideration of a Resolution Setting Forth the Debt Management Policy for the Sewer 
Division [Director Memorandum No. 20-107 - Page 24 of 54] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-33. 

D. Installation of Security Window Film at District Facilities [Director Memorandum No. 20-108 
- Page 32 of 54] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract with ArmorCentric for a sum not to exceed $39,654 and adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-34. 

E. Consideration to Increase Chemical Storage Capacity at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility [Director Memorandum No. 20-109 - Page 36 of 54] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
procure a second chemical storage tank at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility with Augusta Fiberglass for a sum not to exceed $29,199 and adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-35. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. June 30, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Meeting Cancelled 

B. July 7, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Meeting Cancelled 

C. July 14, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

D. July 21, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

E. July 28, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

F. August 4, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

G. August 11, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

H. August 18, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 2 of 54



 
Page 3 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 3 of 54



 
Page 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 4 of 54



 
Page 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 5 of 54



 
Page 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 6 of 54



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 7 of 54



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 6 

MINUTES OF A BOARD MEETING - TELECONFERENCE 
 

June 16, 2020 at 4:00 P.M. 
 

 
Due to the spread of COVID-19 and in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
(a copy of which was attached to the meeting agenda), the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
conducted this meeting by teleconference. 
 
The meeting was available to the public by calling (888) 475-4499 using passcode 676-950-731 
and live presentation material was available at https://zoom.us/j/676950731. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by Chris Mann at 4:00 
p.m. 
 

ROLL CALL The roll was called and Director Lonni Granlund, Director Chris 
Mann, Director Joyce McIntire and Director Dennis Miller were 
present.  
 

Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Lonni Granlund, Vice President  
Joyce McIntire, Director 
Dennis Miller, Director 

Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Madeline Blua, Water Resource Specialist 
Jeremy Costello, Public Works Supervisor 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Chelsie Fogus, Administrative Assistant I 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
Dustin Hochreiter, Senior Engineering Technician 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Tim Mackamul, Operations Manager 
Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Supervisor 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, Director  David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Seth Cole, Alliant Insurance Services 

Jennifer Farr, Davis Farr 
T. Milford Harrison, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Tim Moore, Risk Sciences 
Jonathan Weldy, Meridian Land Development 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 8 of 54



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 6 

Director Jay Bogh was absent. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS None 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR Director Lonni Granlund moved to approve the consent calendar 
and Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Board Meeting - June 9, 2020 
B.  Payment of Bills 

1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded 
Contracts  

2. Ratify General Expenses for May 2020 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information on the 
following item(s): 

• The Yucaipa Valley Water District reported 178 
Residential Gallons per Capita (R-GPCD) consumption 
to the State Water Resources Control Board for May 
2020.  This in an increase from 97 R-GPCD reported in 
April 2020. 

 
Implementation Manager Matthew Porras provided information 
on the following item(s): 

• The CalFire Pilot Rock Fire Crews have been assisting 
the District staff with the removal of overgrown 
vegetation at various locations.  This work is expected to 
continue for the next couple of months. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 9 of 54



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 6 

DM 20-097 
 
STATUS REPORT 
REGARDING THE 
PROCLAMATION OF A 
LOCAL EMERGENCY 
RELATED TO THE 
CORONAVIRUS AND 
COVID-19 IN THE 
YUCAIPA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT 
SERVICE AREA WITHIN 
THE COUNTIES OF 
RIVERSIDE AND SAN 
BERNARDINO 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the 
latest COVID-19 data for the region. 
 
At this time, the District drinking water, sewer, and recycled 
water facilities are operating with no impacts from Coronavirus 
related issues. 
 

DM 20-098 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE 
INTEGRATION OF 
DRINKING WATER, 
RECYCLED WATER, 
SEWER, AND BRINE 
DISPOSAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE OF 
THE YUCAIPA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT  
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided a detailed overview of 
proposed infrastructure improvements anticipated to be 
completed in the next five years.  These improvements include: 

• Drinking water aquifer storage and recovery; 

• Automated Metering Infrastructure; 

• Nanofiltration module replacement at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility; 

• Salinity and Groundwater Enhancement Project at the 
Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility (RO 
membrane expansion); 

• Calimesa Lakes Project; 

• Recycled water aquifer storage and recovery; and 

• Power supply resiliency project. 
 

DM 20-099 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO 
CONDUCT AN 
EVALUATION STUDY OF 
THE DESALITECH 
CLOSED CIRCUIT 
REVERSE OSMOSIS 
SYSTEM 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information about the 
proposed pilot testing of a closed circuit reverse osmosis system 
at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to Contract with Separation Processes to 
perform a pilot study to evaluate the Closed Circuit Reverse 
Osmosis system for a sum not to exceed $192,860. 
 
Director Dennis Miller seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 10 of 54



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 6 

DM 20-100 
 
DISCUSSION 
REGARDING THE 
PRINCIPLES OF 
AGREEMENT FOR THE 
REGIONAL 
COORDINATION AND 
ACHIEVEMENT OF 
COMMON GOALS 
BETWEEN THE SAN 
BERNARDINO VALLEY 
MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT, SAN 
GORGONIO PASS 
WATER AGENCY, AND 
THE YUCAIPA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the 
benefits associated with regional planning and resource 
management. 
 
Tim Moore from Risk Sciences reviewed the Principles of 
Agreement designed specifically for the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District.  These Principles of Agreement will be melded together 
with similar Principles of Agreement developed for the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 
The ad hoc committee members Director Chris Mann and 
Director Lonni Granlund provided their view of the Principles 
and thanked Tim Moore for his work associated with this effort. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund moved that the Board forward the draft 
Principles of Agreement through the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District attorney David Aladjem with Downey 
Brand to prepare a draft agreement for future review and 
consideration. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 20-101 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL 
REPORT FOR THE 
PERIOD ENDING ON 
MAY 31, 2020 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten provided an overview of 
the Unaudited Financial Report for the period ending on May 31, 
2020. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board receive and file 
the unaudited financial report. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 11 of 54



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5 of 6 

DM 20-102 
 
RECEIPT AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
OF THE AUDIT 
PLANNING LETTER FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 
WITH DAVIS FARR 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten introduced the District’s 
new financial auditor Jennifer Farr with Davis Farr Certified 
Public Accountants who discussed the audit planning letter with 
the Board of Directors. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board receive the annual 
planning letter from Davis Farr. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 20-103 
 
RENEWAL OF GENERAL 
INSURANCE 
COVERAGE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021 

Implementation Manager Kathryn Hallberg provided an overview 
of the insurance package for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and 
introduced Seth Cole from Alliant Insurance Services. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to execute the necessary documents for 
property/liability insurance policy coverage from Allied World 
Assurance Coverage for the amount of $237,372. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 20-104 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO 
PROCEED WITH THE 
FINAL DESIGN OF 
RECYCLED WATER 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 
THE R-16.2 RESERVOIR 
COMPLEX 

Implementation Manager Matthew Porras and General Manager 
Joseph Zoba discussed an opportunity to design the R-16.2 
Reservoir Complex to include recycled water facilities to seek 
funding for the new infrastructure. 
 
Jonathan Weldy from Meridian Land Development expressed 
support for the proposed recycled water infrastructure. 
 
Director Dennis Miller moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to initiate the design of the recycled water 
reservoir R-16.2, recycled water pipeline, and a booster station 
for a sum not to exceed $206,800. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 12 of 54



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 6 of 6 

Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

Director Lonni Granlund and Director Joyce McIntire reported on 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Board Meeting held on 
June 15, 2020. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire reported on the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District Policy Workshop held on June 11, 
2020. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Chris Mann called attention to the announcements 
listed on the agenda.   
 

CLOSED SESSION None 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 5:55 p.m.   
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
              Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 13 of 54



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 14 of 54



 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 15 of 54



 

Director Memorandum 20-105 

Date: June 23, 2020 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Status Report Regarding the Discontinuation of Utility Service Pursuant to 
Executive Order N-42.20 

Recommendation: Staff Presentation - No Action Required. 

 
On April 2, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsome signed Executive Order N-42-20, restricting water 
shutoffs in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  This Executive Order also restored water for 
occupied residences that may have had their water shut off as of March 4, 2020 which was the 
date the Governor proclaimed a state of emergency due to COVID-19.   
 
As a result of this Executive Order, the District is not discontinuing any services to customers and 
will continue that practice until such time the Executive Order is cancelled.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 16 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-105  Page 2 of 3 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 17 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-105  Page 3 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 18 of 54



 

Director Memorandum 20-106 

Date: June 23, 2020 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of a Resolution Waiving Late Fees During Specific Stages of 
the COVID-19 Resilience Roadmap for California 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-32. 

 
On April 21, 2020, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2020-23 waiving late fees and 
delinquent charges for water and sewer customers through June 30, 2020 [Director Memorandum 
20-056].   
 
On April 28, 2020, Governor Newsom announced a method to begin opening the businesses in 
the State using available science and data to progress through four distinct stages.   
 

 
 
The District staff has prepared Resolution No. 2020-32 to waive late charges during Stage 1 and 
Stage 2, but to process and collect late charges during Stage 3, and Stage 4.  Therefore, late 
charges would be applied to customer accounts when both Riverside County and San Bernardino 
County enter Stage 3, but the late charges would be discontinued if either county returned to 
Stage 2.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 19 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-106  Page 2 of 5 

  
 

   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 20 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-106  Page 3 of 5 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 21 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-106  Page 4 of 5 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-32 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  
WAIVING LATE FEES DURING SPECIFIC STAGES OF THE  

COVID-19 RESILIENCE ROADMAP FOR CALIFORNIA 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is a public agency of the State of 
California organized and existing pursuant to the provisions of the County Water District Law of 
this State (Section 30000, et seq. of the Water Code); and 
 
WHEREAS, any actions that the Yucaipa Valley Water District may take to ensure the 
continuation of critical services to protect the safety of customers and to provide for immunities 
that will protect the Yucaipa Valley Water District for actions taken, as covered under the California 
Emergency Services Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Governor’s Executive Order N-42-20 issued on April 2, 2020 states the 
following: 
 

1. The authority of urban and community water systems, as defined in Health and 
Safety Code section 116902, subdivision (d), to discontinue residential service, as 
defined in Health and Safety Code section 116902 subdivision (c), for non-
payment under Health and Safety Code sections 116908 and 116910, is 
suspended. 

 
2. Water systems not subject to the requirements of Health and Safety Code sections 

116908 and 116910 shall not discontinue residential service, as defined in Health 
and Safety Code section 116902, subdivision (c), for non-payment. 

 
3. Water systems shall restore any residential service to occupied residences that 

has been discontinued for nonpayment since March 4, 2020. 
  

4. Water systems shall not discontinue service to any business in the critical 
infrastructure sectors designated by the State Public Health Officer as critical to 
protect the health and well-being of all Californians that qualifies as a small 
business under 13 C.F.R. section 121-201 of the Small Business Administration’s 
regulations. 

 
5. The State Water Resources Control Board shall identify best practices, guidelines, 

or both to be implemented during the COVID-19 emergency (i) to address non-
payment or reduced payments, (ii) to promote and to ensure continuity of service 
by water systems and wastewater systems, and (iii) to provide measures such as 
the sharing of supplies, equipment and staffing to relieve water systems under 
financial distress. 

 
 Nothing in this Order eliminates the obligations of water customers to pay for water 

service, prevents a water system from charging a customer for such service, or 
reduces the amount a customer already may owe to a water system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 22 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-106  Page 5 of 5 

WHEREAS, nothing in the Governor’s Executive Order N-42-20 issued on April 2, 2020 limits the 
obligation of customers to continue payments for services or the ability of service providers to 
continue charging customers for the services provided.  No waiver of late fees or collection 
practices has been implemented with the signing of the Executive Order.  Accordingly, so long as 
service providers adhere to the restrictions on service shut-offs, they may continue their standard 
practices in such areas. 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that while not required by Executive Order N-42-20, the 
Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby waives the imposition of late fees 
and delinquent charges for District customers if either Riverside County or San Bernardino County 
are in Stage 1 or Stage 2 of the California Resilience Roadmap. 
 
FURTHERMORE, the Board of Directors directs the District staff to continue with all applicable 
lien processing procedures required to collect unpaid customer balances of greater than 60 days 
as of June 30th. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of June 2020. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 23 of 54



 

Director Memorandum 20-107 

Date: June 23, 2020 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of a Resolution Setting Forth the Debt Management Policy 
for the Sewer Division 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-33. 

 
The District staff is continuing to process the State Revolving Fund application through the State 
Water Resources Control Board for the financing of the Calimesa Regional Recycled Water 
Pipeline Project.  The State Water Resources Control Board has requested a debt management 
policy for the sewer enterprise since the existing policy was specifically crafted for the drinking 
water enterprise.   
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 24 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 2 of 8 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-33 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  
SETTING FORTH THE DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY  

FOR THE SEWER DIVISION 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is a public agency of the State of 
California organized and existing pursuant to the provisions of the County Water District Law of 
this State (Section 30000, et seq. of the Water Code); and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution documents the goals of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (“District”) 
for the use of debt instruments and provides guidelines for the use of debt for financing District 
sewer infrastructure and project needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District’s overriding goal in issuing debt is to respond to and provide for its 
infrastructure, capital project and other financing needs while ensuring that debt is issued and 
managed prudently in order to maintain a sound fiscal position and protect credit quality; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District issues debt instruments, administers District held debt proceeds and 
makes debt service payments, acting with prudence, diligence and attention to prevailing 
economic conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District will pay for all infrastructure, projects, and other financing needs from a 
combination of current revenues, available reserves, and prudently issued debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District believes that debt can provide an equitable means of financing projects 
for its customers and provide access to new capital needed for infrastructure and project needs; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the District will use debt to meet financing needs (i) if it meets the goals of equitable 
treatment of all customers, both current and future; (ii) if it is the most cost-effective means 
available; (iii) if it is fiscally prudent, responsible, and diligent under the prevailing economic 
conditions; and (iv) if there are other important policy reasons; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District will not issue debt without the approval of the Board of Directors. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District, as follows: 
 
1. General Provisions.   
 
 The District will provide for a periodic review of its financial performance and review its 

performance relative to the financial policies outlined herein.  These financial policies will 
be taken into account during the capital planning, budgeting, and rate setting processes.  
Necessary appropriations for annual debt service requirements will be routinely included 
in the District’s annual budget.  The District will maintain proactive communication with the 
investment community, including rating agencies, credit enhancers and investors, to 
ensure future capital market access at the lowest possible interest rates.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 25 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 3 of 8 

 
 The following principles outline the District’s approach to debt management:  
 

A.  The District will issue debt only in the case where there is an identified source of 
repayment.  Debt will be issued to the extent that (i) projected existing revenues 
are sufficient to pay for the proposed debt service together with all existing debt 
service covered by such existing revenues, or (ii) additional projected revenues 
have been identified as a source of repayment in an amount sufficient to pay for 
the proposed debt.  

 
B.  The District will not issue debt to cover operating needs, unless specifically 

approved by the Board.  
 
C.  Debt issuance for a capital project will not be considered unless such project has 

been incorporated into the District’s adopted Capital Improvement Budget or as 
otherwise approved by the Board.  

 
2. Conditions for Debt Issuance. 

 
The following guidelines formally establish parameters for evaluating, issuing, and 
managing the District’s debt.  The guidelines outlined below are not intended to serve as 
a list of rules to be applied to the District’s debt issuance process, but rather to serve as a 
set of practices to promote prudent financial management.  
 
In issuing debt, the District’s objectives will be to:  
 
A.  Achieve the lowest cost of capital  
 
B.  Ensure ratepayer equity  
 
C.  Maintain the adopted credit rating strategy, or a more effective credit rating 

strategy, and access to credit enhancement  
 
D.  Preserve financial flexibility 

 
3. Standards for Use of Debt Financing. 
 

When appropriate, the District will use long-term debt financing to achieve an equitable 
allocation of capital costs/charges between current and future system users, to provide 
more manageable rates in the near and medium term and to minimize rate volatility.  The 
District shall not construct or acquire a facility if it is unable to adequately provide for the 
subsequent annual operation and maintenance costs of the facility throughout its expected 
life.  Capital projects financed through debt issuance will not be financed for a term longer 
than the expected useful life of the project. 

 
4. Debt Capacity. 
 

There is no specific provision within the California Government Code that limits the amount 
of debt that may be issued by the District.  The District’s future borrowing capability is 
limited by the debt coverage ratio and additional debt limitations required by the existing 
bond covenants. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 26 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 4 of 8 

 
5. Security of Debt. 
 

A. Revenue Bonds - Revenue bonds are supported solely from fees generated from 
specific Enterprise Funds.  Accordingly, the District will issue revenue bonds when 
an identifiable revenue stream can be dedicated to support the payment of debt 
service.  The final maturity of revenue bonds will be determined by the expected life 
of the project to be financed and the revenues available to repay the debt.   

 
B. Certificates of Participation (COPs) - Certificates of Participation are a debt 

instrument where an investor purchases a share of the lease revenues of a program 
rather than the bond being secured by those revenues.  Certificates of participation 
are secured by lease revenues. 

 
C. State Revolving Fund Loans - The State of California administers various State 

Revolving Fund (SRF) programs to assist cities and other agencies with financing 
large capital projects.  The programs function like an infrastructure bank by 
distributing low interest rate loans for projects.  Loan repayments are recycled back 
into the SRF program for future borrowings.  Compared to traditional bond financing, 
the District may realize substantial savings as a result of the low interest rate of SRF 
loans.  

 
D. Special Assessment Bonds - Special assessment bonds are a special type of 

municipal bond used to fund development projects that benefit a discrete group of 
taxpayers within a special assessment district.  Principal and interest owed on the 
bonds is paid from assessments on the property benefiting from the particular bond-
funded project.  The creation of an improvement district is subject to approval of 
voters within the district and must follow a detailed legal process. 

 
E. Special District Bonds - Special Districts, including Community Facilities Districts 

(CFDs), are typically initiated by developers, whereby a developer seeks a public 
financing mechanism to fund public infrastructure required by the District in 
connection with a development.  Special District bonds are issued and backed 
entirely by a special district established under State Statutes for the purpose of 
managing and financing public improvements within the district boundaries. 

 
F. Other Agency Loans - There may be opportunities for local agencies to assist each 

other with the construction of infrastructure and facilities that provide regional benefit 
to the area.  These loans will be structured based on mutual agreements between 
the parties and require approval at one or more public meetings. 

 
6. Financing Criteria. 
 

Each debt issuance should be evaluated on an individual basis within the context of the 
District’s overall financing objectives and current market conditions.  The District will 
evaluate alternative debt structures (and timing considerations) to ensure the most cost-
efficient financing under prevailing market conditions.  
 
A. Credit Enhancement – The District will consider the use of credit enhancement on 

a case-by-case basis.  Only when clearly demonstrable savings can be realized 
shall credit enhancement be utilized.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 27 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 5 of 8 

 
B. Cash-Funded Reserve vs. Surety – If the issuance of debt requires a cash-funded 

debt service reserve fund, the District may purchase a surety policy or replace an 
existing cash-funded debt service reserve fund when deemed prudent and 
advantageous.  The District may permit the use of guaranteed investment 
agreements for the investment of reserve funds pledged to the repayment of any 
of its debt when it is approved by the Board.  

 
C.  Call Provisions – In general, the District’s securities should include optional call 

provisions.  The District will avoid the sale of non-callable, long-term fixed rate 
bonds, absent careful evaluation of the value of the call option.  

 
D.  Additional Bonds Test/Rate Covenants – The amount and timing of debt will be 

planned to comply with the additional bonds tests and rate covenants outlined in 
the appropriate legal and financing documents, and this policy.  

 
E. Short-Term Debt – The District may utilize short-term borrowing to serve as a 

bridge for anticipated revenues, construction financing or future bonding capacity.  
 
F. Variable Rate Debt – Variable rate debt products are rolling series of short-term 

investments that are resold periodically and are therefore priced at the short-end 
of the yield curve at low interest rates.  If an issuer accepts the risks inherent in 
variable interest rates, the issuer can take advantage of some of the lowest rates 
available on the market.  Variable rate debt may be appropriate for the District’s 
portfolio, especially in an environment where increased interest earnings on 
invested funds offset the increased cost of variable rate debt.  Variable rate debt 
products include variable rate demand obligations, commercial paper, and auction 
rate securities.  The District may consider the use of variable rate debt products to 
achieve a lower cost of borrowing or for short-term borrowing.  In determining 
whether or not to use variable rate debt, the District will analyze the risks 
associated with the variable rate debt products, including derivative products.  

 
G. Use of Variable Rate Debt – The District may consider the use of variable rate debt 

products to achieve a lower cost of borrowing or for short-term borrowing.  In 
determining whether or not to use variable rate debt, the District will analyze, 
among other things, the risk associated with the variable rate debt and the impact 
on the District’s overall portfolio.   

 
H. Investment of Bond Proceeds - Bond proceeds will be invested in accordance with 

the permitted investment language outlined in the bond documents for each 
transaction.  The District will seek to maximize investment earnings within the 
investment parameters set forth in the respective debt financing documentation.  
The reinvestment of bond proceeds will be incorporated into the evaluation of each 
financing decision; specifically addressing arbitrage/rebate position and evaluating 
alternative debt structures and refunding savings on a “net” debt service basis, 
where appropriate. 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 28 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 6 of 8 

7. Refinancing Outstanding Debt.   
 

The Chief Financial Officer shall have the responsibility to evaluate potential refunding 
opportunities.  The District will consider the following issues when analyzing potential 
refinancing opportunities:  
 
A.  Debt Service Savings – The District shall establish a target savings level greater 

or equal to 3% of the par of debt refunded on a net present value (NPV) basis 
(after payment of all costs associated with the issuance) for a current refunding 
and 5% for advanced refunding transactions.  This figure will serve only as a 
guideline and the District may determine that a different savings target is 
appropriate; the District shall evaluate each refunding opportunity on a case-by-
case basis.  In addition to the savings guideline, the following shall be taken into 
consideration: (i) remaining time to maturity (ii) size of the issue (iii) current interest 
rate environment (iv) annual cash flow savings (v) the value of the call option (vi) 
revision of restrictive or onerous covenants (vii) other factors approved by the 
District  

 
B.  Restructuring – The District may seek to refinance a bond issue on a non-

economic basis, in order to restructure debt, to mitigate irregular debt service 
payments, accommodate revenue shortfalls, to achieve a proper matching of debt 
service with revenues, release reserve funds, or comply with and/or eliminate 
rate/bond covenants.  

 
C.  Term/Final Maturity – The District may consider the extension of the final maturity 

of the refunding bonds in order to achieve a necessary outcome, provided that 
such extension is legal.  The term of the debt should not extend beyond the 
reasonably expected useful life of the asset being financed.  The District may also 
consider shortening the final maturity of the bonds.  The remaining useful life of 
the assets and the concept of inter-generational equity will guide these decisions.  

 
D.  Defeasance – Defeasance is when a debt financing is refinanced or paid off 

through an escrow where certain authorized investments and cash are deposited 
to pay the redemption price, principal, and interest until such time the debt is fully 
redeemed.  On the date when proceeds are deposited into the escrow, the debt 
will no longer be deemed outstanding and is defeased.   

 
There are two types of defeasances: legal and economic.  A legal defeasance ends 
all of the rights and interest of the debt holders provided under the governing 
documents, including the pledge of revenues or other security interest.  An 
economic defeasance does not end the rights and interest of the debt holders until 
such debt is fully redeemed.   
 
When evaluating an economic versus legal defeasance, the District shall take into 
consideration both the financial impact on a net present value basis as well as the 
rating/credit impact.  The District shall take all necessary steps to optimize the yield 
on its refunding escrows investments and avoid negative arbitrage. 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 29 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 7 of 8 

8. Outstanding Debt Limitations. 
 

Prior to issuance of new debt, the District shall consider and review the latest credit rating 
reports and guidelines to ensure the District’s credit ratings and financial flexibility remain 
at levels consistent with the most highly rated comparable public agencies. 

 
9. Method of Issuance. 
 
 The District will determine, on a case-by-case basis, whether to sell its bonds competitively 

or through negotiation.  
 

A.  Competitive Sale – In a competitive sale, the District’s debt shall be awarded to 
the bidder providing the lowest true interest cost (“TIC”), as long as the bid adheres 
to the requirements set forth in the official notice of sale.  

 
B.  Negotiated Sale – The District recognizes that some bond issues are best sold 

through negotiation with a selected underwriter or team of underwriters.  The 
District has identified the following circumstances below in which this would likely 
be the case: (i). Issuance of variable rate or taxable bonds; (ii) Complex structures 
or credit considerations (such as non-rated bonds), which require a strong pre-
marketing effort.  Significant par value, which may limit the number of potential 
bidders, unique/proprietary financing mechanism (such as a financing pool), or 
specialized knowledge of financing mechanism or process; (iii) Market volatility, 
such that the District would be better served by flexibility in the timing of its sale, 
such as in the case of a refunding issue wherein the savings target is sensitive to 
interest rate fluctuations, or in a changing interest rate environment; (iv) When an 
underwriter has identified new financing opportunities or presented alternative 
structures that financially benefit the District; (v) As a result of an underwriter’s 
familiarity with the project/financing, that enables the District to take advantage of 
efficiency and timing considerations  

 
C.  Private Placement – From time to time the District may elect to issue debt on a 

private placement basis.  Such method shall be considered if it is demonstrated to 
result in cost savings or provide other advantages relative to other methods of debt 
issuance, or if it is determined that access to the public market is unavailable and 
timing considerations require that a financing be completed. 

 
10. Market Communication, Debt Administration and Reporting Requirements. 
 

A.  Responsibilities – For purposes of this policy the General Manager delegates 
responsibility to the Chief Financial Officer or his/her successor in position and in 
title.  

 
B.  Rating Agencies – The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for maintaining 

the District’s relationships with Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings, 
and Moody’s Investors Service, as appropriate.  The District shall, from time to 
time, deal with one, two or all of these agencies as circumstances dictate.  In 
addition to general communication, the Chief Financial Officer shall: (i) strive to 
meet, (either in person or via phone) with credit analysts at least annually, as 
appropriate, and (ii) prior to each competitive or negotiated sale, offer conference 
calls or meeting(s) with rating analysts in connection with the planned sale.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 30 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-107  Page 8 of 8 

 
C.  Observance of Debt Covenants – The Chief Financial Officer will periodically 

ensure that the District complies with all legal covenants for each debt issue.  
 
D.  Continuing Disclosure – The Chief Financial Officer will comply for all debt issued 

with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) by required filing as covenanted in each debt issue’s 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Chief Financial Officer will maintain a 
calendar with the reporting deadlines and procedures for dissemination of annual 
reports and notices.  

 
E. Record Keeping – A copy of all debt-related records shall be retained at the 

District’s offices or in an approved storage facility.  At minimum, these records shall 
include all official statements, bid documents, bond documents/transcripts, 
resolutions, trustee statements, leases, and title reports for each financing (to the 
extent available).  To the extent possible, the District shall retain an electronic copy 
of each document, preferably in PDF or CD-ROM format.  

 
F.  Arbitrage Rebate – The District will comply with the administratively adopted 

policies and procedures regarding tax-exempt financings and tax-exempt financed 
property, as well as the tax and arbitrage certifications associated with each issue.  

 
G.  Internal Controls for Use of Proceeds – To ensure that the proceeds of debt 

issuances are used in accordance with the intended uses, staff will perform annual 
procedures as outlined in the District’s Post-Issuance Compliance Manual.  

 
H.  California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC) Filings – The 

District will comply with required CDIAC rules and regulations and applicable filings 
including, but not limited to, the Annual Debt Transparency Report and the Marks-
Roos Yearly Fiscal Status Report.  The District shall also comply with Government 
Code Section 5852.1 by disclosing specified good faith estimates in a public 
meeting prior to the authorization of the issuance of debt.  

 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of June 2020. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 31 of 54



 

Director Memorandum 20-108 

Date: June 23, 2020 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager  

Subject: Installation of Security Window Film at District Facilities 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a contract 
with ArmorCentric for a sum not to exceed $39,654 and adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-34. 

 
District staff has identified that the installation of security window film at various District facilities 
will help to improve the security at these sites.  The security film that has been selected for this 
purpose is a 3-Ply (14 mil) security laminate by ArmorCentric. 
 
The following quotes for each facility are summarized in the table below. 
 

Location ArmorCentric Commercial Metal Door Mystic Mirror 

Location A $10,915 $13,001 $12,390 

Location B $18,378 $23,022 $21,600 

Location C $10,361 $13,695 $11,190 

TOTAL $39,654 $49,718 $45,180 

 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
Funding for this purchase will be from Water and Sewer Infrastructure Reserves [GL Accounts 
#02-000-10311 and 03-000-10311].  Resolution No. 2020-34 would approve the transfer of funds 
from the District Reserve Funds to the Water Fund and Sewer Funds for the purchase of this 
security film.  
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 32 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-108  Page 2 of 4 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 33 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-108  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 34 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-108  Page 4 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-34 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS WITHIN THE WATER FUND AS TRANSFER NUMBER 6 

AND THE SEWER FUND AS TRANSFER NUMBER 7 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes the importance of funding projects within 
the District with funds set aside for this purpose, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has approved the purchase of security film for a sum not to 
exceed $39,654, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE, and ORDER as follows: 
 
Section 1: Fund Transfer No. 6 in the amount of $19,287 from the Water Fund Infrastructure 

Reserves (02-000-10311) to fund 50% of the purchase of the security glass film; 
and  

 
 Section 2: Fund Transfer No. 7 in the amount of $19,287 from the Sewer Fund Infrastructure 

Reserves (03-000-10311) to fund 50% of the purchase of the security glass film. 
  
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of June 2020. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 35 of 54



 

Director Memorandum 20-109 

Date: June 23, 2020 

Prepared By: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Consideration to Increase Chemical Storage Capacity at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to procure a second 
chemical storage tank at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility with Augusta Fiberglass for a sum not to exceed $29,199 and 
adopt Resolution No. 2020-35. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility was completed in 2007.  The combined 
plant effluent disinfectant residual is achieved 
utilizing 12.5% sodium hypochlorite and is 
stored on site in a 7,500 gallon fiberglass tank.    
 
During the months of warmer weather and high 
demand, the existing tank is replenished 
approximately every other week.  Due to the 
current COVID-19 concerns and possible supply 
and/or shipping delays, District staff sought bids 
to increase the chemical storage capacity to 
alleviate the potential shutdown of the drinking 
water facility due to delayed deliveries.   
 
The Augusta Fiberglass quote includes $11,500 
in shipping charges whereas the National 
Storage Tank quote does not include shipping 
costs.  Additionally, District staff explored all 
options including a plastic tank as seen in the 
Plastic-Mart quote.   
 
District staff is requesting your consideration to 
procure a second 7,500 gallon chemical storage 
tank at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility from Augusta Fiberglass as seen in the attached quote for a sum not to exceed 
$29,199.  
 
This project will be funded by Water Fund, Infrastructure Reserves [G/L Account #02-000-10311]. 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 36 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 2 of 10 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-35 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING FUND TRANSFER NO. 8 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 WITHIN THE 

DRINKING WATER ENTERPRISE 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes the importance of funding projects within 
the District with funds set aside for this purpose, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has approved the purchase of a new chemical storage tank at 
the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE, and ORDER as follows: 
Section 1: Fund Transfer No. 8 in the amount of $29,199 from the Water Fund Infrastructure 

Reserves (02-000-10311) to fund 100% of the purchase of the additional chemical 
storage tank at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility. 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of June 2020. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 37 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 3 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 38 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 4 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 39 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 5 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 40 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 6 of 10 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 41 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 7 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 42 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 8 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 43 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 9 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 44 of 54



Director Memorandum No. 20-109  Page 10 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 45 of 54



 

 

Board Reports and Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 46 of 54



August 2019 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

72 full time employees 
 

FY 2019-20 Operating Budget: Water Division - $14,455,500 
 Sewer Division - $12,217,712 
 Recycled Water Division - $1,301,447 
 

Number of Services: 13,794 drinking water connections serving 19,243 units 
14,104 sewer connections serving 22,774 units 
111 recycled water connections serving 460 units 

 

Water System: 223 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,033 fire hydrants 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
2.958 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 3.5 mgd 
213 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,504 sewer manholes 
5 sewer lift stations 
1.27 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.681 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 47 of 54



August 2019 
 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.429 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $1.919 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.099 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.429 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.425 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $14.00 per month 
1” Water Meter $23.38 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $46.62 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $42.43 per month 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 48 of 54



August 2019 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2019-20 $0.1425 per $100 $0.1775 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2019-20 $58,372,000 $9,551,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.270 per 1,000 gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.660 per 1,000 gallons.  A proposed 
rate change to $0.857 per 1,000 gallons is pending future consideration by YVWD. 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 49 of 54



August 2019 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli are the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of typically underground pipes that receive and convey 
sanitary wastewater or storm water. 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 50 of 54



August 2019 
 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals,  hormones,  and  other  organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 51 of 54



August 2019 
 

steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) -  Regional regulatory agency  that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 52 of 54

https://www.digalert.org/


August 2019 
 

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 53 of 54



August 2019 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - June 23, 2020 - Page 54 of 54




